{ STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA }
{ IN THE SUPREME COURT }

{ APPEAL FROM GREENVILLE COUNTY }
{ COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS }

{ THE HONORABLE G. EDWARD WEIMAKER CIRCUIT Judge }

THE STATE

RESPONDENT

APPELLATE CASE No.

v.

2015-000595

ERICK E. HEWINS

PETITIONER

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED

DATED Nov 17, 2015

s. Erick Hewins

ERICK E. HEWINS⁴

PRO'SE

MC CORMICK 1/2 F-2-B-244

386 REDEMPTION WAY

MC CORMICK, SOUTH CAROLINA

RECEIVED

NOV 20 2015

S.C. SUPREME COURT

29899

{ THE SUPREME COURT OF SOUTH CAROLINA }

THE STATE

RESPONDENT

v.

ERICK E. HEWINS

PETITIONER

RECEIVED

NOV 20 2015

S.C. SUPREME COURT

{ APPELLATE CASE NO. 2015-000595 }

{ PETITIONER PROSE BRIEF }

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED

DATED Nov, 17 2015 2015 s Erick Hewins

ERICK E. HEWINS

MCCORMICK #1 F-2-B-244

386 REDEMPTION WAY

MCCORMICK, SOUTH CAROLINA

29899

{ TABLE OF AUTHORITIES }

MARYLAND V. BUZE

TERRY V. OHIO

STROON V. NEWYORK

STATE V. BLASSINGAME

STATE V. BURTON

STATE V. BUTLER

STATE V. CHISOLM

STATE V. COLBREATH

STATE V. FOSTER

STATE V. RODRIGUEZ

STATE V. TAYLOR

STATE V. TAYLOR

STATE V. TINDALL

STATE V. WILLIAMS

U.S. V. DIGIOVANNI

U.S. V. LENDER

U.S. V. SOKOLOV

U.S. V. SPRINKLE

U.S. V. SULLIVAN

OTHER AUTHORITY

U.S. CONSTITUTION AMENDMENT IV

SOUTH CAROLINA RULE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE RULE (C)(B)

} STATEMENT OF ISSUE ON APPEAL }

- 1.) THE TRIAL COURT ERRED BY FAILING TO SUPPRESS EVIDENCE SEIZED BY OFFICER GARDNER FOLLOWING HIS UNLAWFUL FOURTH AMENDMENT SEIZURE OF DEFENDANT BECAUSE OFFICER GARDNER FAILED TO ARTICULATE ANY REASON THAT HE REASONABLY SUSPECTED DEFENDANT WAS ENGAGED IN CRIMINAL ACTIVITY AT THE TIME THE OFFICERS SAW DEFENDANT SITTING IN HIS VEHICLE..... 9
- 2.) THE TRIAL COURT ERRED WHEN IT FOUND OFFICER GARDNER HAD REASONABLE SUSPICION SUFFICIENT TO CONDUCT A TERRY FRISK WHERE OFFICER GARDNER FAILED TO OFFER SUPPORT FOR HIS BELIEF THAT DEFENDANT WAS ARMED AND DANGEROUS AND WHERE OFFICER GARDNER ALLOWED TOO MUCH TIME TO ELAPSE BETWEEN ASKING DEFENDANT TO EXIT HIS VEHICLE AND ACTUALLY CONDUCTING THE SEARCH/FRISK.....
- 3.) THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO SUPPRESS EVIDENCE SEIZED BY OFFICER GARDNER DURING A SECOND UNLAWFUL SEARCH OF DEFENDANT.....
- 4.) THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ADMITTING EVIDENCE WHERE STATE FAILED TO PROPERLY IDENTIFY TESTIMONY OR SWORN STATEMENT THE EVIDENCE CUSTODIAN INITIALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR RETRIEVING OR THE CONDITION OF THE EVIDENCE WHEN IT WAS LOGGED INTO PROPERT AND EVIDENCE.....

{ STATEMENT OF THE CASE }

THE STATE INDICTED ERICK B. HEWINS FOR TRAFFICKING TEN GRAMS OR MORE OF CRACK COCAINE AND POSSESSION OF A CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE SCHEDULE IV.

BEFORE TRIAL, HEWINS MOVED TO SUPPRESS EVIDENCE ARGUING THE DETENTION AND SUBSEQUENT PAT-DOWN WAS UNLAWFUL UNDER THE FOURTH AMENDMENT.

THE TRIAL COURT DENIED THE MOTION AFTER A HEARING.

DURING TRIAL, HEWINS OBJECTED TO THE ADMISSION OF THE DRUG EVIDENCE PURSUANT TO RULE (E) OF THE SOUTH CAROLINA RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURES, ARGUING THAT THE CHAIN OF CUSTODY WAS INCOMPLETE.

THE TRIAL COURT DENIED THE MOTION AND THE JURY FOUND HEWINS GUILTY AS INDICTED.

HEWINS RAISED FOUR ISSUES TO THE COURT OF APPEALS:

- 1) THE POLICE LACKED REASONABLE SUSPICION TO DETAIN HIM
- 2) THE POLICE DID NOT HAVE REASONABLE BELIEF THAT HE WAS ARMED AND DANGEROUS TO JUSTIFY THE PAT-DOWN
- 3) A SECOND REACH INTO HIS POCKET
- 4) THE STATE DID NOT PROPERLY IDENTIFY BY TESTIMONY OR SWORN STATEMENT, EITHER THE INITIAL CUSTODIAN RESPONSIBLE FOR RETRIEVING THE DRUG EVIDENCE OR THE CONDITION OF THE EVIDENCE

ON THE NIGHT OF HEWINS ARREST OFFICER SCOTT GARDNER

AND RACHEL HALL OF THE GREENVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT'S

AGGRESSIVE PATROL UNIT DROVE INTO THE PARKING LOT OF THE

CLARTON INN.

AT THE SUPPRESSION HEARING, GARDNER TESTIFIED THE LOCATION WAS "A VERY HIGH CRIME AREA, WITH DRUGS AND PROSTITUTION AND BREAK INS, WHERE GARDNER HAD PERSONALLY DEALT WITH MULTIPLE DRUG TRAFFICKING CASES AND NUMEROUS PROSTITUTION CASES." THE OFFICERS OBSERVED HEWINS IN A BLACK LEXUS BACKED INTO A PARKING SPOT NEXT TO A CAMRY "WITH TWO YOUNG FEMALES INSIDE IT "WHITE FEMALES" HEWINS AND THE TWO FEMALES WERE PARKED DRIVER SIDE TO DRIVER SIDE WINDOW AND APPEARED TO HAVE A MEETING FOR SOME REASON."

NO OTHER CARS WERE NEAR THE LEXUS AND CAMRY.

GARDNER PULLED THE UNMARKED PATROL VEHICLE DIRECTLY BEHIND THE LEXUS AND HORIZONTAL TO THE CAMRY "FOR OFFICER SAFETY PURPOSES "THE PARKING LOT WAS NOT WELL LIT AT THE TIME THE ONLY LIGHTS IN THE PARKING LOT CAME FROM THE CLARTON INN BUILDING.

GARDNER AND HALL EXITED THEIR VEHICLE AND IDENTIFIED THEMSELVES AS POLICE OFFICERS AS THEY APPROACHED HEWINS AND THE WOMENS, GARDNER POSITIONED HIMSELF BETWEEN THE LEXUS AND CAMRY SO HE COULD SEE HEWINS FROM BEHIND -- ON ONE SIDE AND THE TWO WOMEN ON THE OTHER. ALL THREE INDIVIDUALS APPEARED TO BE VERY NERVOUS ALMOST INSTANTANEOUSLY AND STOPPED TALKING TO EACH OTHER.

GARDNER ASKED WHAT THEY WERE DOING IN THE PARKING LOT AND FOR THEIR IDENTIFICATION - THE YOUNG FEMALES HAD THEIRS ID. MR. HEWINS DID NOT. WHEN GARDNER ASKED HEWINS WHAT HE WAS DOING AT THE CLARTON INN

HEWINS RESPONDED HE WAS THERE TO SEE HIS BABY MOMMA IN ROOM (227) WHEN GARDNER ASKED FOR THAT PERSON NAME, HEWINS TOLD GARDNER "HE DIDN'T KNOW HER NAME". HEWINS WAS STUTTERING WHEN HE WAS SPEAKING, BEGAIN TO GET INCREASINGLY NERVOUS AND BEGAN SWEATING PROFUSELY. HALL RAN DATA BASE CHECK ON THE THREE OF THEM HALL RECEIVED RESPONSES FOR THE WOMEN BUT HAD TROUBLE GETTING HEWINS INFORMATION BACK.

GARDNER THEN CALLED FOR BACKUP.

GARDNER TESTIFIED HEWINS CONTINUALLY TOUCHED HIS LEFT POCKET, AND HE CONTINUED TO TOUCH THE POCKET AND, HE TRIED TO PLACE HIS HAND IN HIS LEFT POCKET,

GARDNER STATED FOR HIS OWN SAFETY, HE ASKED HEWINS TO STOP MOVING HIS HANDS AND TO LEAVE HIS LEFT POCKET ALONE. GARDNER TESTIFIED HEWINS HAND MOTION COULD BE AN INDICATION THAT THE INDIVIDUALS EITHER HAS A WEAPONS OR THAT THEY HAVE CONTRABAND OR DRUGS INSIDE THEIR POCKET. IT IS SOMETHING THAT A LOT OF INDIVIDUALS THAT WE LEARN THROUGH OUR TRAINING DO UNCONSCIOUSLY HEWINS CONTINUED TO TOUCH HIS POCKET AFTER BEING ASKED NOT TO DO SO.

WHEN BACK UP ARRIVED GARDNER ASKED HEWINS TO STEP OUT OF THE VEHICLE.

GARDNER INFORMED HEWINS HE WAS GOING TO CONDUCT A TERRY FRISK ON HIS PERSON FOR WEAPONS ON THE OUTSIDE OF HIS CLOTHING. "GARDNER CONDUCT A PAT DOWN, FELT A HARD LUMP INSIDE THE POCKET, LEFT POCKET AND ASKED HEWINS WHAT THE LUMP WAS? HEWINS DID NOT RESPONDED AND

GARDNER THEN ASKED HEWINS IF HE COULD HAVE CONSENT TO PLACE HIS HANDS INSIDE THE POCKET, HEWINS DID NOT CONSENT.

GARDNER STATED HE RECEIVED CONSENT AND GARDNER FOUND A LARGE WAD OF CASH, ROLLED UP IN RUBBER BANDS, HEWINS DID NOT KNOW WHY HE HAD SUCH A LARGE SUM OF MONEY ON HIS PERSON AND TOLD GARDNER HE DID THIS AND THAT FOR A LIVING.

{ APPARENTLY WITHOUT ANY FURTHER NOTICE, INQUIRY OR NOTICE GARDNER THEN REACHED INTO HEWINS POCKET A SECOND TIME. GARDNER STATED:

DUE TO THE FACT I COULDN'T FULLY CLEAR HIS POCKET DUE TO THIS LARGE LUMP, AND THEN ALSO STILL HAVING CONSENT, I REACHED BACK INTO THE POCKET TO CLEAR THE REST OF THE ITEMS OUT, BECAUSE THERE COULD POSSIBLY STILL HAVE BEEN A WEAPON UNDERNEATH THAT LARGE LUMP AND IT WAS FOUR GREEN PILLS WHICH WERE CONFIRMED TO BE CLONAZEPAN WHICH IS A SCHEDULE IV DRUG.

AFTER FINDING THE PILLS, GARDNER ARRESTED HEWINS AND CALLED A TOW TRUCK FOR HEWINS VEHICLE, PURSUANT TO POLICY OFFICERS CONDUCTED AN INVENTORY SEARCH OF THE VEHICLE FOR VAILABLES, OR WEAPONS OR OTHER CONTRABAND. DURING THE SEARCH OF HEWINS VEHICLE GARDNER FOUND A LARGE PIECE OF CRACK IN THE -- ON THE BACK FLOOR BOARD APPROXIMATELY EIGHTEEN TO TWENTY GRAMS AND AN ADVI BOTTLE IN THE CENTER CONSOLE WITH MULTIPLE SMALL CRACK

ROCK INSIDE " ANOTHER OFFICER ASSISTING IN THE SEARCH
FOUND A SILVER SCALE IN A DUFFEL BAG IN THE TRUNK OF
THE CAR.

{ ARGUMENT }

ATTACHED pg. 8-27

APPELLATE COUNSEL'S ARGUMENT IN HER BRIEF
ON RECORD WITH THE COURT

{ PRESENTATION OF THE ISSUES }

{ GROUND ONE - FOUR }

THE COURT OF APPEALS ERRED IN ITS FACTUAL DETERMINATION AND SHOULD NOT HAVE MADE A DISPOSITIVE FACTUAL DETERMINATION WHICH WAS UNSUPPORTED BY THE RECORD ON APPEAL WHICH THE STATE FAILED TO RAISE AT TRIAL LEVEL.

THE TRIAL COURT NEVER MADE A DETERMINATION ON VOLUNTARY CONSENT NOR DID THE STATE PRESENT ANY CASE IN SUPPORT OF VOLUNTARY CONSENT.

TR. TR. PG. 75-76 LN 25

WHEN ASKED IF HE IN ANYWAY GAVE CONSENT PETITIONER STATED: NO SIR, AND FOR THE RECORD IN 2010 I KNEW I HAD THE RIGHT TO CONSENT TO A SEARCH OR NOT TO CONSENT TO A SEARCH. SO I DID NOT CONSENTED.

TR. TR. PG. 353-354

THE STATE HAS THE BURDEN TO DEMONSTRATE THE VOLUNTARINESS OF CONSENT WHEN DISPUTED BY THE DEFENDANT.

{ STATE V. PROVET } 403 S.C. 201, 113 949 S.E. 2d 453, 460 (2019)

THE PROSECUTION WITHDRAW HER CONSENT CHARGE.

TR. TR. PG. 372 L-1-9

WHEN THE TRIAL COURT MAKES NO ATTEMPT TO DETERMINE WHETHER ALLEGED CONSENT WAS VOLUNTARILY GIVEN BEFORE PERMITTING JURY TO HEAR ALLEGED CONSENT CHARGE

PETITIONER A FAIR TRIAL.

TR. TR. pg. 370 L-20-25

UNDER THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT IS A RULE THAT A JURY IS NOT TO HEAR UNLESS AND UNTIL THE TRIAL COURT HAS DETERMINED THAT IT WAS FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY GIVEN.

THE TRIAL COURT SHIFTED THE BURDEN FROM THE STATE TO PETITIONER.

THE COURT OF APPEALS STATED IN ITS OPINION AT BAR THAT
... WE ARE TROUBLED BY GARDNER BARE ASSERTION THAT HE RECEIVED CONSENT FOR THE SECOND REACH TO JUSTIFY HIS ACTIONS.

THE COURT OF APPEALS RELIED UPON NO MORE THAN MERE ASSERTION BY OFFICER GARDNER, THAT CONSENT WAS GIVEN THERE WAS NO EVIDENCE TO CORROBORATE CONSENT, ... EVEN THOUGH AT THE TIME OF THE ALLEGED TERRY FRISK OCCURRED THERE WAS A TOTAL OF FIVE OFFICERS ON THE SCENE.
SEE (CAJ REPORT)

TR. TR. pg. 114 L-6

CORROBORATION BY WITNESS MEGAN NEWMAN

THE COURT OF APPEALS ERRED IN ITS FACTUAL DETERMINATION AS TO WHETHER ARRESTING OFFICER REASONABLY BELIEVED THAT PETITIONER HAD CONTRABAND UPON HIM BASED UPON THE APPELLATE COURT ERRONEOUS FINDINGS OF CONSENT.
SEE PG. (5) OF THE COURT OPINION.

THE COURT OF APPEALS ERRED IN ITS FACTUAL DETERMINATION BY REFUSING TO DETERMINE WHETHER ARRESTING OFFICER

HAD REASONABLE SUSPICION THAT PETITIONER HAD CONTRABAND IN HIS POCKET BECAUSE GARDNER TESTIFIED HE RECEIVED HEWINS CONSENT TO REACH INTO THE POCKET. THE EXISTENCE OF VOLUNTARY CONSENT IS DETERMINED FROM THE TOTALITY OF THE CIRCUMSTANCES. {MENDENHALL SUPRA}

COURTS HAVE REJECTED FINDINGS OF CONSENT SOLELY ON THE ACQUIESCENCE TO THE OFFICER WISH TO ESTABLISH THE REQUISITE CONSENT.

THE COURT OF APPEALS ERRED IN ITS FACTUAL DETERMINATION THAT THE COURT DID NOT ERRED BY FAILING TO SUPPRESS EVIDENCE SEIZED BY OFFICER GARDNER FOLLOWING THE UNLAWFUL DETENTION OF PETITIONER BECAUSE OFFICER GARDNER FAILED TO ARTICULATE ANY REASON THAT HE REASONABLY BELIEVED PETITIONER WAS ENGAGED IN CRIMINAL ACTIVITY AT THE TIME OFFICERS SAW PETITIONER SITTING IN HIS VEHICLE.

AT THAT POINT IN TIME, THE PETITIONER WAS DETAINED..... AND WAS NOT FREE TO LEAVE, BECAUSE OFFICER GARDNER PULLED HIS VEHICLE TO BLOCK PETITIONER FROM LEAVING.

TRC TRC PG 066 L-19-24

EVEN ASSUMING THIS WAS A TRAFFIC STOP, IT WAS IMPROPER AND EVERY QUESTION THEREAFTER EXCEEDED THE LIMITED SCOPE AND DURATION OF THE QUESTIONS ALLOWED UNDER (TERRY) AND IT PROGENY AND PETITIONER WAS UNLAWFULLY DETAINED AND THE TRIAL COURT MADE NO DEFINITIVE RULING AS TO THE TIME THE DETENTION BEGAN, BUT STATED IN THE COURTS OPINION THAT IT LIKELY OCCURRED WHEN GARDNER ASKED HEWINS TO STEP OUT OF HIS VEHICLE.

"THE DETENTION BEGAN THE MOMENT OFFICER GARDNER BLOCKED PETITIONER IN WITH HIS PATROL VEHICLE."

A REASONABLE PERSON WOULD HAVE BELIEVED HE WAS NOT FREE TO LEAVE.

{ STATE V. RODRIGUEZ } 323 S.C. 484, 491 - 92 476 S.E.2D 164, 165
{ U.S. V. MUNDENHALL } 466 U.S. AT 584 100 S.C.T. 1577 (1979)

THE UNDERLYING PURPOSE FOR A TRAFFIC STOP MUST BE LAWFUL

{ STATE V. BUTLER } 353 S.C. 387, 391, 577 S.E.2D 498, 503 (2003)

IT IS ILLEGAL IF THE STOP GOES BEYOND A LEGITIMATE SCOPE.

{ STATE V. TINDALL } 383 S.C. 518, 521, 698 S.E.2D 263 (2012)

{ U.S. V. SULLIVAN } 188 F.3D 126, 131 (1998)

REASONABLE SUSPICION REQUIRES A PARTICULARIZED AND OBJECTIVE BASIS THAT WOULD LEAD ONE TO SUSPECT ANOTHER OF CRIMINAL ACTIVITY.

{ STATE V. BIASINGAME } 338 S.C. 240, 248, 525 S.E.2D 532, 539 (1999)

SUSPECTING AN AREA OF BEING A HIGH CRIME AREA DOES NOT PROVIDE AN OBJECTIVE BASIS TO SUSPECT CRIMINAL ACTIVITY IT REQUIRES MORE WHICH AT THE MOMENT OFFICER GARDNER AND HALL DETAINED THE PETITIONER WAS NOT THERE. FROM THE OUTSET, THERE WAS THE DETENTION . . . WHICH WAS THE TYPE OF FISHING EXPEDITION DENOUNCED BY OUR SUPREME COURT IN:

{ SVKES } 418 S.C.2D AT 563

{ STATE V. RODRIGUEZ } 476 S.E.2D 164, 166 (1996)

{ STATE V. WOODRUFF } 544 S.E.2D 285 (2001)

THE COURT OF APPEALS ERRED IN ITS FACTUAL DETERMINATION WHEN IT FOUND OFFICER GARDNER HAD REASONABLE SUSPICION SUFFICIENT TO CONDUCT A TERRY FRISK WHERE OFFICER GARDNER FAILED TO OFFER ANY SUPPORT FOR HIS BELIEF THAT THE DEFENDANT WAS ARMED AND DANGEROUS, WHERE OFFICER GARDNER ALLOWED TOO MUCH TIME TO ELAPSE BETWEEN THE UNCONSTITUTIONAL DETENTION AND ASKING THE DEFENDANT TO EXIT HIS VEHICLE, AND ACTUALLY CONDUCTING THE FRISK.

{ STATE V. BUTLER } 252 S.C. 388, 393 597 S.E.2d 498, 503

OFFICER GARDNER STATED HE BELIEVED SOMETHING TO BE CAUTIOUS OF EXISTED IN PETITIONERS POCKET, BUT WAITED UNTIL DEFENDANT WAS OUT OF THE CAR. THREE BACK UP OFFICERS HAD ARRIVED. THERE WAS NO REASONABLE SUSPICION TO JUSTIFY A TERRY FRISK.

THE COURT OF APPEALS ERRED IN ITS FACTUAL DETERMINATION IN FAILING TO SUPPRESS EVIDENCE SEIZED BY OFFICER GARDNER DURING A SECOND UNLAWFUL REACH. THE COURT OF APPEALS STATED:

" WE BELIEVE THE FACT RAISES QUESTIONS OF WHETHER GARDNER SECOND REACH INTO HEWINS POCKET WAS JUSTIFIED BY CONSENT WE FIND THE ISSUE IS NOT PRESERVED "

HOWEVER THE ISSUE WAS PRESERVED AS WILL BE SHOWN: DEFENSE COUNSEL ARGUED AGAINST THE LEGALITY OF THE SECOND REACH INTO HEWINS POCKET AS EXCEEDING THE SCOPE OF THE ALLEGED CONSENT.

AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE ARGUMENT THE TRIAL COURT STATED:
"CERTAINLY YOUR ARGUMENT IS WELL STATED AND NOTED
FOR THE RECORD."

TR. TR. PG. 160 2-15-16

IT IS NOT NECESSARY FOR MORE WORDS TO UNDERSTAND
THAT THE COURT TOOK JUDICIAL NOTICE OF THE ISSUES AND
RULED AGAINST PETITIONER, THAT PRESERVES THE ISSUE FOR
APPELLATE REVIEW AND THE COURT OF APPEALS ERRED IN ITS
FACTUAL DETERMINATION.

SEE EXHIBIT (2)

OFFICER GARDNER PARKED THE PATROL CAR DIRECTLY BEHIND
HENINS AND HORIZONTAL TO THE CAMRY.

TR. TR. PG. 169 L-3-17 TR. TR. PG. 119-120 L-15-25- L-1-25

THE EXACT ORDER AND TIME FRAME OF WHAT HAPPENED IS
SUBJECT TO DEBATE.

THE OFFICER AND THE DEFENDANT PRESENTED SLIGHT
VARIATIONS OF WHAT HAPPENED AND THERE WAS NO RECORDINGS
OR ANY OTHER AFFIRMATION AS TO WHAT ACTUALLY HAPPENED OR
HOW LONG IT TOOK, EXCEPT FOR THE (CAD REPORT) DEMONSTRATING
THAT OFFICER GARDNER AND HALL ARRIVED ON THE SCENE AT
12:48 A.M. AT WHICH TIME DEFENDANT WAS OUTSIDE HIS
VEHICLE BUT OFFICER GARDNER HAD NOT YET PERFORMED
THE PAT-DOWN.

THE COURT OF APPEALS ERRED IN ITS FACTUAL DETERMINATION
IN THE ADMISSION OF EVIDENCE WHERE THE STATE FAILED
TO PROPERLY IDENTIFY BY TESTIMONY OR SWORN STATEMENT
THE EVIDENCE CUSTODIAN INITIALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR

RETRIEVING THE EVIDENCE OR THE CONDITION OF THE EVIDENCE WHEN IT WAS LOGGED IN.

THE COURT INDICATED IT RULED UPON BOTH ISSUES WHEN IT STATED COUNSEL WAS NOTED FOR THE RECORD.

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