STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE SUPREME COURT

Appeal from Greenville County
The Honorable G. Edward Welmaker, Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case No. 2015-000595

THE STATE,

Respondent,

v.

ERICK E. HEWINS,

Petitioner.

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

MARY LEDDON
Assistant Attorney General

SUSANNAH COLE
Assistant Attorney General

Post Office Box 11549
Columbia, SC 29211
(803) 734-3727

W. WALTER WILKINS
Solicitor, Thirteenth Judicial Circuit

305 E. North Street
Greenville, SC 29601
(864) 467-8647

ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT

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

The initial contact between Petitioner and Officers Gardner and Hall constituted a brief encounter which required no objective justification. “The identification of oneself as a police officer, and the request to see a driver’s license, with nothing more, is not a

‘seizure.’” State v. Culbreath, 300 S.C. 232, 236, 387 S.E.2d 255, 257 (1990) abrogated by Horton v. California, 496 U.S. 128, 110 S. Ct. 2301, 110 L. Ed. 2d 112 (1990). According to testimony of Gardner and Hall, Petitioner’s car was not blocked in, and either car could have driven away.² (R. p. 10, lines 10-15; p. 45, lines 8-20; p. 52, lines 9-14; R. p. 62, line 25 – p. 63, line 5; p. 153, lines 22-24; p. 155, lines 11-14; p. 177, lines 2-5; p. 193, lines 20-22.) Cf. Robinson v. State, 407 S.C. 169, 754 S.E.2d 862 (2014) (Where officer’s vehicle blocked Petitioner’s, preventing it from driving away, a reasonable person in Petitioner’s position would not have felt free to leave.). Officers stood between the cars in such a way that Petitioner could have opened his car door. (R. p. 31, line 23 – p. 32, line 2; p. 155, line 21 – p. 156, line 5.) Officers initially approached the group, mentioning the crime problem in the area and asked for identification. (R. p. 11, line 12; p. 71, line 18 – p. 72, line 5.) Under these circumstances, it is clear this was initially a simple encounter, not a seizure.

However, should the court determine the initial contact between officers and Petitioner was an investigatory stop, reasonable suspicion would support the officers’ actions. This incident occurred on August 9, 2010. Detective Scott Gardner (“Gardner”) was working a 7:00 pm – 7:00 am shift with Officer Rachel Hall (“Hall”). (R. p. 5, line 22-p. 6, line 3; p. 39, lines 19-22; p. 128, lines 6-11.) Gardner and Hall were on patrol as part of an aggressive patrol unit (“APU”); the officers worked in plain clothes and in an unmarked car in order to “get to crimes such as narcotics or prostitution or auto break-ins” more easily. (R. p. 6, lines 5-10; p. 39, line 23 – p. 40, line 20; p. 127, line 24 – p. 128, line 5; p. 172, lines 12-18.) That morning, the patrol included the Clarion Inn just off

² While Petitioner and one of the female occupants of the second car testified they were unable to leave their parking spots, the officers’ testimony meets the “any evidence” standard necessary to support the trial court’s ruling.

of Haywood Road, a location where Gardner had personally made multiple drug trafficking and prostitution cases in the past. (R. p. 6, lines 21-25; p. 25, line 2 - p. 26, line 3; p. 129, lines 21-24; p. 173, lines 3-25.) The Clarion Inn was of particular interest due to its proximity to the highway, making it a prime location for drug and prostitution meetings. (R. p. 7, lines 5-11; p. 129, lines 8-13.) Gardner also noted its proximity to other hotels and apartment complexes as it was common practice for perpetrators of auto break-ins to park in one parking lot and commit crime in a nearby parking lot. (R. p. 7, lines 12-20; p. 174, line 23 – p. 175, line 11.) According to Hall, there had been several incidents of auto break-ins in parking lots of hotels and apartment complexes in this area of Haywood Road. (R. p. 41, lines 17-24; p. 173, lines 3-25.)

Upon arriving at the Clarion Inn just after midnight, Gardner and Hall observed a black Lexus occupied by Petitioner. (R. p. 8, lines 1-2; p. 42, lines 21-24; p. 53, lines 15-22; p. 174, lines 5-6.) A Camry occupied by two teenage females was parked alongside Petitioner's car in a dimly-lit portion of the parking lot. (R. p. 8, lines 2-6; p. 18, lines 11-14; p. 130, lines 9-15; p. 132, line 23 – p. 133, line 1; p. 174, lines 7-12.) It did not appear the parties had luggage or "had really any business being at the hotel," and "they appeared to have a meeting for some reason." (R. p. 8, lines 7-10; p. 132, lines 2-7.) The cars were positioned such that Petitioner's car was backed in with Petitioner facing the parking lot and the other car was pulled with the occupants facing the hotel, allowing the driver's side windows to face one another. (R. p. 8, lines 11-14; p. 31, lines 2-17; p. 42, line 21 – p. 43, line 1.) Gardner noted vehicles in this area also often back into parking spaces to prevent law enforcement from seeing the vehicle's license tag. (R. p. 8, lines 17-20.) This is often seen in the case of stolen vehicles or a person trying to conceal identity. (R. p. 8, lines 19-20; p. 132, lines 14-22; p. 174, lines 13-22.) Such parking was

also against a city parking law. (R. p. 15, lines 20-22; p. 139, line 24 – p. 140, line 2.) Gardner did not recall any other vehicles in the parking lot at the time. (R. p. 8, lines 21-23; p. 130, lines 2-6; p. 131, lines 20-21.)

In sum, even before speaking to the vehicle occupants, several factors raised reasonable suspicion:

- 1) High crime area based on law enforcement experience, with specific concerns regarding prostitution, drug traffic, and vehicle theft.
- 2) Parking so as to conceal tag on vehicle, consistent with stolen vehicles per officer experience. Parking in this manner was also against city ordinance.
- 3) Lateness of hour.
- 4) Meeting in darkened area of parking lot. No other cars were nearby.
- 5) Young females meeting an older male gave rise to suspicion of prostitution.
- 6) Occupants appeared to have no business at the hotel but appeared to be meeting for a purpose.

After officers approached the vehicles, numerous factors further aroused Gardner's reasonable suspicions. Gardner and Hall were in an unmarked tan Impala and wore t-shirts with visible badges. (R. p. 128, lines 20-25.) Gardner and Hall identified themselves as police officers when they approached the vehicles. (R. p. 10, line 18 – p. 11, line 6.) Gardner noted "all three individuals appeared to be very nervous almost instantaneously." (R. p. 11, lines 7-8.) As the officers approached, conversation among them ceased, and the subjects looked straight ahead. (R. p. 11, lines 8-10; p. 135, lines 16-18.) The young women provided identification, but Petitioner did not have identification. (R. p. 11, lines 12-13; p. 43, lines 23 – p. 44, line 4; p. 134, lines 23-24; p. 178, lines 19-23.) As Petitioner provided his name and date of birth to Hall, he appeared "very nervous" and "was stuttering when he was speaking," so much so that he gave two

different social security numbers. (R. p. 11, lines 14-15; p. 47, lines 9-15; p. 50, lines 11-12; p. 134, line 25 – p. 135, line 2; p. 136, lines 22-24; p. 179, lines 9-13.)

Gardner noticed Petitioner grew increasingly nervous as they talked even though Gardner asked innocuous questions. (R. p. 11, lines 16-17; p. 17, lines 12-15.) Officers particularly noticed Petitioner sweating profusely after they began speaking with him. (R. p. 50, lines 20-21; p. 135, lines 20-23; p. 180, lines 19-22.) Gardner found this odd because Gardner himself was “a large gentleman” and not sweating at all even though he was wearing body armor beneath his t-shirt. (R. p. 11, lines 17-20; p. 135, lines 18-23.) Gardner asked general questions, including what Petitioner was doing at the Clarion. (R. p. 17, lines 12-16.) Petitioner replied he was there to visit his child’s mother in room 237. (R. p. 17, lines 16-18.) However, when asked the woman’s name, he replied he did not know. (R. p. 17, lines 18-19; p. 135, line 23 – p. 136, line 1; p. 167, lines 20-22.)

The officers’ assessment of the disparate ages of the parties was confirmed during the conversation and checking of identification. Petitioner was approximately thirty-seven (37) years old, and the females were seventeen and eighteen years old, respectively. (R. p. 11, lines 23-25; p. 44, lines 7-10; p. 87, lines 17-25.) The confirmed age difference alerted Gardner to the possibility of prostitution, a common crime in the area. (R. p. 12, lines 1-3.)

Hall returned to the patrol vehicle to run the identification information on the subjects. Hall had trouble getting information back on Petitioner, a possible indicator he provided false information which often occurs when subjects have suspended licenses or warrants, and providing false information was itself a criminal offense. (R. p. 12, lines 14-24; p. 44, lines 13-22; p. 46, lines 1-3; p. 139, lines 16-23.) Hall returned to

Petitioner's vehicle to verify Petitioner's identification information. (R. p. 13, lines 3-7; p. 46, lines 3-7; p. 180, lines 6-16.) Backup was requested. (R. p. 13, lines 9-12.)

While Hall continued to verify Petitioner's identification, Gardner noticed Petitioner continually touching his left pocket, at one point trying to place his hand in the pocket. (R. p. 13, lines 12-15; p. 46, lines 10-18; p. 136, lines 1-10.) Hall also noticed Petitioner touching his pocket "continuously" and felt concern Petitioner could have a weapon. (R. p. 49, lines 17-24; p. 50, lines 6-8; p. 50, line 19 – p. 51, line 5; p. 179, line 13 – p. 180, line 2; p. 180, lines 22-23; p. 181, lines 2-5.) Due to safety concerns, Gardner asked Petitioner to refrain from touching the pocket and to leave his hands in sight. (R. p. 13, lines 15-17; p. 34, lines 3-6.; p. 136, lines 10-12) Gardner explained this behavior is an indicator the individual has drugs or a weapon in the pocket. (R. p. 13, lines 17-24; p. 136, lines 2-7.) After being asked not to, Petitioner continued to touch the pocket multiple times. (R. p. 13, line 25 – p. 14, line 2; p. 136, lines 11-12.)

In summary, during the conversation with the parties, officers assessed:

- Petitioner noticeably stuttered and appeared nervous when officers greeted him and identified themselves as law enforcement officers.
- Petitioner's nervousness increased as they talked.
- Petitioner was sweating profusely, much more than the officer of his same physical stature. He began sweating after the encounter began.
- Disparate ages of the parties alerted officers to possible prostitution.
- Petitioner failed to present identification, a possible indicator he did not have a valid license.
- Hall had difficulty running the information Petitioner provided, causing concern he may be providing false information.³

³ While it was ultimately determined that Petitioner had provided valid identification information, the officer's reasonable perceptions at the time must be considered. The officer cannot be required to be clairvoyant. It was determined that Petitioner did not have a valid driver's license. (R. p. 15, lines 15-19; p. 141, lines 1-6; p. 181, lines 21-22.)

- Petitioner claimed to be visiting his child's mother at the hotel in room 237, but could not provide her name, further indication of deception.
- Petitioner was constantly touching his pocket, an indicator he possibly had narcotics or a weapon. After being asked not to touch the pocket, Petitioner continued to do so.

While the State maintains the encounter was consensual, all of these factors, taken together and in addition to the factors assessed prior to contact, show Gardner had reasonable suspicion criminal activity was afoot when he asked Petitioner to step out of his vehicle.

The Terry frisk of Petitioner was justified. Gardner was particularly justified in his concern due to the fact Petitioner repeatedly touched his pocket even after being directed not to. Based on training and experience, this particular behavior caused concern Petitioner may have a weapon. In this situation, a reasonably prudent man, fairly isolated in a dark parking lot with a sizeable man who could not satisfactorily explain why he was in the area and who repeatedly touched his pocket despite the officer's request to the contrary, was warranted in his belief his safety was in danger. In contrast to State v. Butler, 353 S.C. 383, 577 S.E.2d 498 (Ct. App. 2003), Gardner had reason to fear Petitioner was armed due to his repeated touching of his pocket. This case also differs from the case of Burton, 349 S.C. 430 (finding trial court's alleged error in admitting evidence of search and seizure not preserved for appeal where propriety of police action questioned for first time in motion for directed verdict)) in that Gardner's suspicions of criminal activity were based on more than Petitioner's furtive conduct in touching his pocket.

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